Document Pack

PN Wendy Walters
cngor - Sy Gﬁl‘) Prif Weithredwr,
% . Chief Executive,
Carmarthenshlreg Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP
22D County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP

Qs
“nty con

15T JULY, 20109.

TO: THE EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER - DEPUTY LEADER

| HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND AN EXECUTIVE BOARD
MEMBER DECISIONS MEETING FOR THE DEPUTY LEADER
WHICH WILL BE HELD IN THE DEMOCRATIC SERVICES
COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL, CARMARTHEN AT 11.00
A.M. ON FRIDAY, 5TH JULY, 2019 FOR THE TRANSACTION OF
THE BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE ATTACHED AGENDA.

Wendy Walters

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

#® PLEASE RECYCLE

Democratic Officer: Emma Bryer
Telephone (direct line): (01267) 224029
E-Mail: EBryer@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

o i Ga A EICHCYWGORarleinamdani
orer Sir Gar wwwisirgar.lyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire e
o % YOurRcounciLdoitonline
Uty con® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



AGENDA

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.

2. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE DECISION RECORD 3-4
OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 30TH OCTOBER, 2017.

3. UPDATED PURCHASE OF ANNUAL LEAVE POLICY. 5-18

Note:- The press and public are not be entitled to attend the meeting. The decision record
will be published normally within 3 working days.

wo i Ga A EICHCYNGORarleinamdani
areer Sir Gar wwwisirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire e
¢ %  YOURCOUNciLdoitonline
iy cow® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DECISIONS ME
DEPUTY LEADER

MONDAY, 30 October 2017
PRESENT: Councillor: L.M. Stephens (Deputy Leader).

The following officers were in attendance:
P.R. Thomas, Assistant Chief Executive (People Management & Performance)
K. Thomas, Democratic Services Officer

Room 61, County Hall, Carmarthen - 10.00 - 10.10 am
(NOTE: Whilst the meeting was scheduled to commence at 9.00 a.m., its start was
delayed until 10.00 a.m.)

1. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST
There were no declarations of personal interest.

2. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE DECISION RECORD OF THE
MEETING HELD ON THE 5TH JULY 2017

RESOLVED that the decision record of the meeting held on the 5" July, 2017
be signed as a correct record.

3. GUIDANCE NOTE FOR STANDBY

The Executive Board Member considered a report on proposed revisions to the
Authority’s application and rate of Standby arrangements.

The Assistant Chief Executive reported that for the previous twelve months the
Authority had been in consultation with the Trade Unions on the existing standby
arrangements and actual sessional rate applied thereto, being the highest in
Wales. Those consultations had culminated at a meeting of the Corporate
Employee Relations Forum on the 19" October, 2017 when the Unions had
advised they would not be in a position to ballot their membership on the revised
proposals without there being clear guidance from the Authority on its expectations
for staff undertaking standby.

As a consequence, the Executive Board Member was requested to endorse a
revised Guidance Note on Standby for issue to the Trade Unions, which had been
developed from the existing guidance applicable since the implementation of
Single Status in 2012.

The Executive Board Member referred to the new guidance and suggested the
following amendments be made thereto:
e Item 3 being cross referenced to item 6 on the standby sessions
e Item 5, the 3" bullet point being amended to read “The necessary contact
details are available and updated regularly”.

RESOLVED that, subject to the above amendments, the revised Guidance
Note for Standby be approved.

o Sir Gar EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
o -4 Your counciLdoitonline Page 3
ity Cou® www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales



EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER DATE

)\ - .
o Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORArleinamdani

Carmarthenshi www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
armarthenshire
Page 4 >

YOUR counciLdoitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Q, =222\
>, f
gy Con®




5™ JULY 2019

Agenda Item 3

Executive Board Member:

Portfolio:

ClIr.Mair Stephens

People Management

Subject: Updated Purchase of Additional Leave Policy
Purpose: Updated to clarify updated pension implications.

Recommendations / key decisions required:

The Purchase of Leave Policy has been updated to reflect the current position in relation to
pension buy back. Recent changes to the LGPS now require an employee to elect to buy
back pension for a period of additional (unpaid) leave. It is up to the employee to decide
whether to buy back and it is their responsibility to make arrangements for the buy- back
directly with the Dyfed Pension Fund. Apart from this, the policy is unchanged except from

some formatting changes.

Updated Policy attached.

Reasons:

As above.

Directorate
Name of Head of Service:
Paul R Thomas

Report Author:
Alison Wood

Designation
Assistant Chief Executive

People Services Manager

Tel No. 01267224825
01267246152
E Mail Address:

PRThomas@carmarthens
hire.gov.uk
AMWood@carmarthenshir
e.gov.uk

™
oreor Sir Gar B

Carmarthenshire

Q, =22\
0O o
Uty Cowt©

EICH cYNGorarleinamdani
www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

YOUR couNciL doitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 5


mailto:PRThomas@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:PRThomas@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:AMWood@carmarthenshire.gov.uk
mailto:AMWood@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Declaration of Personal Interest (if any):
None

Dispensation Granted to Make Decision (if any):
N/A

DECISION MADE:

Signhed:
DATE:
EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBER

The following section will be completed by the Democratic Services Officer in attendance
at the meeting

Recommendation of Officer YES / NO
adopted

Recommendation of the Officer
was adopted subject to the
amendment(s) and reason(s)
specified:

Reason(s) why the Officer’s
recommendation was not
adopted:

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGorRarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
ity Cow™ www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 6



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
EBM Meeting 5" July 2019

Updated Purchase of Additional Leave Policy

1. BRIEF SUMMARY OF PURPOSE OF REPORT.

The Purchase of Leave Policy has been updated to reflect the current position in relation
to pension buy back. Recent changes to the LGPS now require an employee to elect to
buy back pension for a period of additional (unpaid) leave. Itis up to the employee to
decide whether to buy back and it is their responsibility to make arrangements for the
buy- back directly with the Dyfed Pension Fund. Apart from this, the policy is
unchanged except from some formatting changes.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGorRarleinamdani
oreer Sir Gar www.sirgarllyw.cymru

Carmarthenshire . .
4 YOUR counciLdoitonline
ity Cow™ www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 7



IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this

report :

Signed: Paul R Thomas Assistant Chief Executive

Policy and Legal Finance ICT Risk Organisational Physical
Crime & Management | Development Assets
Disorder Issues

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE YES NONE

7. Staffing Implications

Slight amendment to the Pensions’ wording within the Policy.

™
oreor Sir Gar B

Page 8

Carmarthenshire

7
>,

0 a2 Z
0, A
“nty Con®

EICH CYNGORArleinamdani

www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

YOUR couNciL doitonline
www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales




CONSULTATIONS

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Paul R Thomas Assistant Chief Executive ( People Management)

1. Scrutiny Committee
N/A

2.Local Member(s)

N/A

3.Community / Town Council
N/A

4.Relevant Partners

N/A

5.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations
Staff representatives have been advised of amendment at CERF 28/6/19.

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

POLICY ENCLOSED

Title of Document File Ref No. | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection
wor Sir Gar B EICH CYNGORarleinamdani
e Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru
Carmarthenshire . .
< YOUR counciLdoitonline
ity Cow™ www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Purchase of Additional Leave

Draft Policy

June 2019

wor i GALIA EICH cYNGorarleinamdani
omeer Sir Gar www.sirgar.llyw.cymru

et YOur counciLdoitonline
“nty Cont www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Carmarthenshire

Page 11



Introduction

1. Carmarthenshire County Council is committed to supporting the health and
well-being of their employees and this scheme is intended to assist
employees in balancing their home and work life. There may be instances
for example where an employee:

° Is planning a special event or trip

° Needs extra leave for personal reasons

° Simply would like more annual leave
Purpose

2. The purpose of the additional leave purchase scheme is to provide
employees with additional flexibility in respect of planned time off work.
The additional leave is unpaid, the cost of which will be deducted from an
employee’s salary over their annual leave year. This will ensure that the
employee continues to receive a monthly salary, at a reduced rate to reflect
the unpaid leave.

Policy Statement

3. As part of the Council’s ongoing commitment to supporting employees to
balance their work and personal commitments, this Policy has been agreed
to allow employees to request up to 10 days (pro-rata part time) additional
unpaid annual leave. This is a discretionary scheme and applications will be
considered in accordance with the service needs.

4. The scheme will be administered via a ‘salary sacrifice’ arrangement which
will allow employees to purchase additional leave which is not subject to
tax or national insurance deductions. The scheme will also reduce the
Council’s employer contributions for National Insurance. (Please see
paragraph 6).

5. This scheme does not replace or restrict the discretion of line managers to
grant unpaid leave in line with the Time off Policy. It also does not provide
a right to take additional annual leave and is subject to the service needs.

Carmarthenshire www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales
%Wlw'éou“é\\

PN
Eagp 12 orser Sir Gﬁy’ Your counciL doitonline


http://intranet/our-people/hr/time-off-work/

Scope

6. This scheme applies to all employees of Carmarthenshire County Council,
excluding staff employed by locally managed schools.

Eligibility

7. Subject to paragraph 6, this scheme is available to all eligible employees:
e Who have completed 12 months’ continuous service at the time of
making the request and completed the probationary period
satisfactorily;

e Have a contract of employment for the duration of the term of the
salary sacrifice agreement; and

e Where the ‘reduced’ salary (salary after the cost of the additional
leave is deducted) is above the National Living Wage threshold for
the duration of the term of the salary sacrifice agreement.

Salary Sacrifice

8. A salary sacrifice arrangement varies an employee’s terms and conditions
of employment for the duration of the salary sacrifice agreement. It does
so by reducing the employee’s gross pay by the value of the annual leave
days purchased and in turn increasing their annual leave entitlement.

9. Once the additional annual leave purchased is paid for in full, the
employee’s terms and conditions (i.e. salary) of employment revert back to
those in place prior to entering the salary sacrifice agreement.

10. The Council would advise any employee who is in receipt of any state
benefit, such as working tax credits, child tax credits, Statutory Maternity,
Paternity and Adoption pay etc, to contact the Department for Work and
Pensions for advice on how this scheme may affect them, prior to entering
a salary sacrifice agreement.

PN
oo Sir Gar % youR COUNCIL doitonline 4eag_&l§
Carmarthenshire www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Q=2
Uty cow®



Terms of the Additional Leave Purchase Scheme

11.

12.

13.
14.
15.
16.

17.

18.

19.

PN
Bagp 14 oo Sir Gﬁy’ Your counciLdoitonline

A maximum of 10 days additional leave (up to a maximum of weekly
contracted hours) can be requested to be purchased. The 10 days
additional annual leave will be pro rata for part time employees.

An application to purchase additional leave can be made at any time from
the start of your leave year subject to eligibility as described in para. 5. The
amount purchased will be deducted from pay by the end of the employee’s
annual leave year. For example if an application is approved for an
additional 5 days leave on 30th November and the employees birthday is
31st January, the 5 days will be deducted over the two remaining pay
periods.

Whilst the maximum number of days which an employee can request
within their 12 month annual leave period is 10 days, they can submit
multiple requests, e.g. 2 requests for 3 days and 1 request for 4 days.

Once an application has been approved and the first deduction made from
pay, the agreement becomes binding and cannot be brought to an end
before the final deduction is made.

All additional leave purchased (whether a single amount of 10 days or
multiple amounts) must be paid for within the same annual leave period it
is purchased for.

Once purchased leave cannot be “sold back” to the Council.
The additional leave will be added to the employee’s annual leave balance.

There will be no increase in the annual leave “carry forward” provisions in
line with the Annual Leave and Holiday Pay Policy. Managers and employees
must ensure requests for and authorisation of all annual leave is planned
appropriately during the annual leave year. If, having purchased additional
annual leave, the employee fails to take it before the end of the relevant
leave year, the leave will be lost and no reimbursement made.

A separate request must be made for each leave year.

Carmarthenshire
%Mzw'é;““é\\

www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales


http://intranet/our-people/hr/time-off-work/annual-leave/

Application for purchase of additional leave

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

An application to purchase additional leave should be made to the relevant
Line Manager.

Once a request is received the Line Manager should notify the employee of
their decision within 14 calendar days.

Approval of requests will depend upon the needs of the service and must
not increase the costs of the service for example by having to provide
additional cover, staffing or other resources.

A request may be reasonably refused for operational reasons related to the
job and service needs, which could include consideration of workloads and
the periods of leave being taken by other members of staff.

This is a discretionary scheme. However, an employee may ask for a
review of the decision and this can be requested by writing to the Assistant
Chief Executive, People Management. The employee will need to clearly
outline their grounds for requesting a review of the decision. The review
will then be undertaken by the Head of Service or their nominated
representative with advice from a HR Advisor. The final decision will be
confirmed in writing to the employee by the Manager undertaking the
review.

Pension Implications

25.

26.

For pension purposes any additional annual leave purchased will be classed
as a period of ‘authorised unpaid leave of absence’ and pension
contributions by both the employee and Council will not automatically be
paid.

Employees can elect to buy these pension contributions back and will be
responsible for doing this directly with the Dyfed Pension Fund. |If the
employee chooses to cover the period of absence for pension purposes,
this will be by paying an Additional Pension Contributions (APC) to cover
the amount of pension ‘lost’

P N
o Sir Gar % your counciLdoitonline 4F_)ag&l§
Carmarthenshire www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Q=2
Uty Cou®



27. If an employee elects to pay an APC to cover the lost pension, the Council
will be liable to pay two thirds of the costs, if the election is made within 30
calendar days of the application being approved.

28. If an employee elects to cover the period of absence for pension purposes
after the 30 days has elapsed then the Council is not obliged to pay the
employer pension contribution costs and the employee will be liable for the
full amount.

Leaving the Council

29. Employees leaving the Council will be reimbursed if the salary sacrifice
deductions on leaving amount to more than the additional leave purchased
but untaken prior to the leaving date. Likewise, pay will be recovered from
the employee’s final salary if the value of the salary sacrifice deduction is
less than the value of the annual leave taken.

30. Line Managers are responsible for advising Employee Services of
reimbursement or deduction actions that are necessary, in advance of the
employee’s last day of service with the Council.

Ensuring Equality of Opportunity

31. All employees are required to adopt a positive, open and fair approach and
ensure the Authority’s Equality and Diversity Policy is adhered to and
applied consistently to all irrespective of race, colour, nationality, ethnic or
national origins, disability, religion and belief or non-belief, age, sex, gender
reassignment, gender identity and gender expression, sexual orientation,
pregnancy or maternity, marital or civil partnership status.

32. In addition, the Welsh Language Standards ask us to ‘ensure that the Welsh
language is treated no less favourably than the English language’ and this
principle should be adopted in the application of this policy and procedure.

33. If you have any equality and diversity concerns in relation to the application
of this policy and procedure, please contact a member of the HR Team who
will, if necessary, ensure the policy/procedure is reviewed accordingly

Carmarthenshire www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales
QW7W'é;““é\\

PN
Bagp 16 orser Sir Gﬁy’ Your counciL doitonline



If you require this publication in an alternative format please contact People
Management on Ext 6184 or email
PMBusinessSupportUnit@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

P
omer Sir Gar X Your counciLdoitonline Ea”e 17
CarmarthenShqu www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales

Qe
Uty Cow®©


mailto:PMBusinessSupportUnit@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE DECISION RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 30TH OCTOBER, 2017.
	3 UPDATED PURCHASE OF ANNUAL LEAVE POLICY.
	Updated Draft Policy Purchase of Leave Scheme JUNE 19


